

Double-Degree Master's Programme - InterMaths Applied and Interdisciplinary Mathematics

Master of Science Applied Mathematics Master of Science Mathematical Engineering

University of L'Aquila (UAQ)

Ivan Franko National University of Lviv (IFNUL)

Master's Thesis

Microscopic simulation of road traffic

Supervisor Ass. Prof. Andriy Styahar

CV

Candidate Abayomi Dennis Epebinu

Student ID (UAQ): 274392 Student ID (IFNUL): 27210488C

Academic Year 2021/2022

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION AND SCIENCE OF UKRAINE IVAN FRANKO NATIONAL UNIVERSITY OF LVIV. Faculty of Applied Mathematics and Informatics

Department of Applied Mathematics

Master's Thesis

MICROSCOPIC SIMULATION OF ROAD TRAFFIC

Author: Epebinu Dennis($\Pi M \Pi M - 62$) specialty 113 Applied Mathematics

_____Ass. Prof Andriy Styahar

Supervisor:

 $_$ <first name> <last name>

Reviewer:

 $__{\rm first name} >$

Lviv - 2022

Contents

| Abstract | | | | | | | | | | | |
|----------|---------------|---------------------------------|----------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| A | Abbreviations | | | | | | | | | | |
| 1 | Intr | oduction | 5 | | | | | | | | |
| | 1.1 | Relevance of the Problem | 6 | | | | | | | | |
| | 1.2 | Problem Statement | 6 | | | | | | | | |
| | 1.3 | Aim of the Research | 7 | | | | | | | | |
| | 1.4 | Research Materials | 7 | | | | | | | | |
| | 1.5 | Description of the Model | 7 | | | | | | | | |
| 2 | Lite | erature review | 9 | | | | | | | | |
| 3 | Met | chodology | 11 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3.1 | Microscopic Modeling | 11 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3.2 | Cellular Automata | 12 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3.3 | Analysis of the model | 12 | | | | | | | | |
| | | 3.3.1 The rules of the CA model | 13 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3.4 | Component of the system. | 14 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3.5 | Build Model | 15 | | | | | | | | |
| | 3.6 | Intelligent Driver Model (IDM) | 16 | | | | | | | | |

| | 3.7 | ane-Changing Model | 19 | | | | | | |
|----|------------|--|--|----|--|--|--|--|--|
| | 3.8 | 3 Mathematical Structure of the IDM | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| 4 | Res | esults and Analysis | | | | | | | |
| | 4.1 | One La | ane Simulation | 21 | | | | | |
| | | 4.1.1 | Description of the single lane traffic | 21 | | | | | |
| | 4.2 | 2 Two-Lane Simulation | | | | | | | |
| | | 4.2.1 | Description of the double lane traffic \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots | 25 | | | | | |
| | 4.3 | 3 Simulation with the Intelligent driver model (IDM) | | | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.1 | Roundabout (close road) $\ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots \ldots$ | 29 | | | | | |
| | | 4.3.2 | Open System Scenarios with different Bottlenecks | 30 | | | | | |
| | 4.4 | Compa | aring our simulation with other traffic simulations \ldots | 32 | | | | | |
| Co | Conclusion | | | | | | | | |

References

 $\mathbf{34}$

Abstract

Microscopic simulation models have been widely used as tools to investigate the operation of road traffic and different intelligent transportation systems applications. The conformity of microscopic simulation tools depends on the driving behavior models that they implement. We desire to model and simulate road traffic using cellular automata (CA). Our model explains traffic occurrences as well as possible and simulate real traffic. The successful model allowed us to optimize requirements for traffic (to take controlling action) and to plan changes without actually having to try out all the possible variations that occur in reality. It is almost self-evident that these different necessities partially compete with each other. Also we try to understand the concept of intelligent driver model (IDM) and try to simulate this concept and compare our model to other models of traffic simulation.

Abbreviations

 $\begin{array}{l} q_{max} = \text{maximum flow} \\ v_{max} = \text{optimal speed} \\ k_{max} = \text{optimal density} \\ v = \text{speed } (km/h) \\ k = \text{density } (veh/km) \\ v_f = \text{free mean speed } (veh/km) \\ k_j = \text{jam density } (veh/km) \\ S_{0,i} = \text{minimum expected distance between vehicles.} \\ v_{0,i} = \text{maximum expected speed of a vehicle.} \\ \delta = \text{it controls the acceleration 'smoothness'.} \\ T_i = \text{the reaction time of the driver of the car.} \\ a_i = \text{the maximum acceleration of the vehicle.} \\ b_i = \text{the car comfortable deceleration.} \\ S^* = \text{the actual desired distance between vehicles} \end{array}$

Chapter 1 Introduction

Traffic modeling is aimed to accurately recreate traffic as observed and measured on roads. Traffic modeling assumed the appearance of a traffic system without replicating. We are no longer interested completely in the standard value of significant traffic parameters for a roadway such as the velocity vin km/h, the flow f in veh/h or the density ρ in veh/km. To control the flow, we amount the number of vehicles transitory by a check point per unit time. For the density, we consider the number of vehicles per leg on a domination section. At the microscopic simulation, we want to determine the traffic down to the individual traffic partaker to "microscopic" precision in mandate to consider the individual behavior. From the point of assessment of the individual driver, this is significant in the case for route planning. This should be as lively as possible and be reliant on the current traffic situation. It must also account for individual possessions such as the maximum speed of each driver's automobile. A person traveling a lot can effortlessly understand that, in particular, the properties of traffic can strongly depend on the individual or on individual classes of vehicle kinds. Driving in the country with slight view of the road ahead, a single tractor or truck can instigate a long vehicle line since the other traffic participants are offered little chance for transitory for our macroscopic model that was considered, there always occurred the implicit possibility to permit.

1.1 Relevance of the Problem

The first approach on microscopic modeling techniques for road traffic were the so-called car-following models. Now, separate traffic members are modeled via partial differential equations which has the important benefit that for simple variants the model is systematically soluble.



Figure 1.1: Car following model

1.2 Problem Statement

From the viewpoint of the traffic planners, on a highway it is of concern to know the consequence that a no-passing regulation has on the overall traffic, if it is applied only to a quota of the traffic participants, for instance, only for trucks. In addition, the behavior of trucks and cars on the road is meaningfully diverse. These are all motives to reflect the traffic microscopically. If we also involve the goal to exactly resolve and exemplify a road network (for example of a larger city), formerly a macroscopic recreation based on wave propagation replicas, and it becomes computationally very intense. In order to predict traffic congestion, it must be possible to simulate at a faster rate than real time since otherwise the results would effectively become obsolete during their computation. At minimum from a historical point of opinion the macroscopic simulation has reached its limits.

1.3 Aim of the Research

In this research we want to introduce a model that is based on stochastic cellular automata. It models and explains different traffic phenomena and it is very useful in applications. We transfer the concept of cellular automata to the traffic simulation. Also, we introduce the idea of intelligent driver model (IDM) and we compared this model to other known models.

1.4 Research Materials

In this thesis work the software tools that we will use for our simulation are matlab and python.

1.5 Description of the Model

For the modeling of road traffic, we at foremost want to contemplate a modest, closed, single lane road. We will later extend the model to more classy and accurate cases which, in principal, are progressed from such simple structure blocks. In addition, we permit only standard cars as traffic participants. Now, the state of a cell is not alive or dead, but a cell may or may not contain a car with some velocity. Therefore, the cell state is also a car with a velocity value (0, if it presently stands still) or there is "no car". With respect to the set of states, it is imaginable to allow for an arbitrary velocity for engaged cells.



Figure 1.2: Car moving with velocity

Through this, however, it could then happen that a vehicle that is moving comes to a halt somewhere amid two cells. Thus, in our model we amount the velocity in cells/time step and allow solitary for distinct velocity levels. For the following, the maximum admissible velocity of the model will be $v_{max} = 5$ cells/timestep. A cell should match to the smallest space that a car dominates on the road, including its safety distance. In order to persuasively standardize this parameter, we turn to the real world for assistance. Clarifications on highways have revealed that in traffic overcrowding situations, i.e., for maximum density, one has to assume around 7.5m per car. This corresponds to a maximum density ρ max of about 133.3 cars/km (214.5 veh/mile). In severe circumstances and, in specific, for city traffic, the highest density can also be higher which we disregard and eliminate from our model.

- 1. First is the traffic flows. In traffic movements, another routes can be acknowledged based on the quantity of vehicles. By exploiting the simulation model, modeller can develop on how to decrease the levels of overcrowding of certain roads.
- 2. Second output is the network element. Network component in traffic simulation contains of connection, merge, link cross and other fundamentals of the road. This is associated to the algebraic layout of the road. Using suitable simulation package, the road algebraic design can be changed to see how it can affect the present traffic situation.
- 3. Third output is the skim category. Simulations model can help to estimate the time and price of travel. This is especially used when the valuation of traffic development is desired to be measured. The transport planner can easily make a presentation assessment without any extra cost of money and time.

Chapter 2 Literature review

A large number of cellular automata (CA) based traffic flow models have been proposed in the recent years. Often, the speed-flow-density relations obtained from these models are only presented and their apparent similarities with observed relations are cited as reasons for considering them as valid models of traffic flow. Hardly any attempt has been made to comprehensively study the microscopic properties (like time-headway distribution, acceleration noise, stability in car-following situations, etc.) of the simulated streams. This research work proposes a framework for such evaluations. It also presents the results from the evaluation of six existing CA-based models. The results show that none of them satisfy all the properties. A new model proposed by the authors to overcome these shortcomings is briefly presented, and results supporting the improved performance of the proposed model are also provided. Literature search on microscopic analysis of CAbased traffic flow models yields some papers which study certain (not all) microscopic properties of some of the CA-based traffic flow models. For example, Knospe et al. (2000, 2004) have studied the time-headway distribution as well as distance headways for traffic streams simulated using many of the CA-based traffic flow models. Recently, Bham and Benekohal (2004) conducted the stability analysis of their model (CELLSIM) and also compared the individual vehicle trajectories and speeds from simulation with field data. A search of literature yielded little work on the development of a framework for the evaluation of any microscopic traffic flow model. Many studies, not necessarily related to CA-based traffic flow models, have only studied individual vehicle trajectories and speeds of the simulated vehicles and compared them with the test track data (e.g. Benekohal and Treiterer, 1988; Aycin and Benekohal, 1998; Brockfeld et al., 2004; Ranjitkar et al., 2004). Others like Kikuchi and Chakroborty (1999), Wu et al. (2003) and

Panwai and Dia (2005) have only concentrated on car-following behaviour.

In the past, the experimental findings are consistent with a recently proposed theoretical phase diagram for traffic near on-ramps D. Helbing, A. Hennecke, and M. Treiber, Phys. Rev. Lett. 82, 4360 (1999). Also the single-lane car-following models have been successfully applied to describe traffic dynamics. Particularly collective phenomena such as traffic instabilities and the spatio-temporal dynamics of congested traffic can be well understood within the scope of single-lane traffic models. But real traffic consists of different types of vehicles, such as cars and trucks. Therefore, a realistic description of heterogeneous traffic streams is only possible within a multi-lane modeling framework allowing faster vehicles to improve their driving condition by passing slower vehicles. Hence, freeway lane changing has recently received increased attention. Moreover, since lane-changing maneuvers often act as initial perturbations, it is crucial to understand their impact on the capacity, stability, and breakdown of traffic flows. Particularly near bottleneck sections such as on-ramps and off-ramps, lane changing is often a significant ingredient in triggering a traffic breakdown (provided that the traffic volume is high). In addition, drivers' lane-changing behaviour has a direct influence on traffic safety. Despite its great significance, lane changing has not been studied nearly as extensively as longitudinal acceleration and deceleration behaviour. One reason is the scarcity of reliable data. To measure lane changes, cross-sectional data from detectors are not sufficient and therefore only a few empirical studies about lane changing rates as a function of traffic flow or density are available. Sparmann (2012) investigated lane-changing rates on a German two lanes autobahn. Data for a British motorway were presented by Yousif and Hunt (2013). Recent progress in video tracking methods, however, allows for a collection of high-quality trajectory data from aerial observations. These two-dimensional data will become more and more available in the future and will allow for a more profound understanding of the microscopic lane-changing processes.

Chapter 3 Methodology

3.1 Microscopic Modeling

Microscopic modeling based on the features of numerous vehicle actions such as cars, buses, motorcycles and so on in the traffic movement. Microscopic modeling envisioned to assemble data factors, such as, flow, density, speed, travel and delay time, elongated queues, stopovers, pollution, fuel utilisation and tremor waves. The features of microscopic modeling approaches were based on car-following model, lane-changing models and gaps of the separate drivers. In the micro model, the driver model is used to designate the performance of the vehicle. Consequently, it must be a multi-agent scheme, that is, each vehicle routes on its own using input from its location. In the



Figure 3.1: Two moving vehicles

microscopic model, individual car is numbered i. The first car i follows the (i-1) vehicles. For the first i vehicles, we will use x_i to indicate its location along the road, and we use v_i to indicate its speed, as well as l_i indicates its length. Every car is like this.

$$S_i = x_i - x_{i-1} - l_i \tag{3.1}$$

$$\Delta v_i = v_i - v_{i-1} \tag{3.2}$$

Where v_i indicate the speed of the following vehicle, v_{i-1} is the speed of the leading vehicle and S_i is the distance between the two vehicles i and i-1

3.2 Cellular Automata

Cellular automata is a model that comprises of the following components:

- 1. Cell space: A discrete, in most cases one- or two-dimensional cell space. Every cells have the similar geometry such that in the two-dimensional case commonly rectangular (cartesian), hexagonal or triangular grids.
- 2. Set of states: Each cell of an automaton can assume only one (typically discrete) state from a set of states.
- 3. Neighborhood relation: Each cell can only sense the state of the cells in its neighborhood.
- 4. **Discrete time:** The state of the CA changes in discrete time steps δt . new state is computed in parallel for all cells.

3.3 Analysis of the model.

There are two central model assumptions that our model shall satisfy, they are:

- 1. Absence of collision
- 2. Conservation of vehicle.

Absence of collisions means that two vehicles may never drive within the identical cell within a time step or between two-time steps. This applies, specifically, that a vehicle must be able to decelerate without any time lag. If a car travels at $v = v_{max} = 5$ and, at time step t, arrives in the cell directly behind a non-moving car, then it must be assured that in the next time step

it reduces its velocity to v = 0 and also stops moving. Hence it holds for the neighborhood connection. For this modest model it is necessary for a vehicle to look ahead the highest step width in the driving direction, i.e., five cells. Let the vehicles be numbered with regard to the driving route, i.e., vehicle i drives with velocity v_i behind vehicle i + 1 with velocity $v_i(i + 1)$, let d(i, j)be the distance of vehicle i to vehicle j in driving direction, i.e., the number of cells between i and j. Two cars that stand sprightly one after the other have distance zero. The rules of the change function hold in parallel for all vehicles.



Figure 3.2: Car with traffic jam

Two cars that stand sprightly one after the other have distance zero. The rules of the change function hold in parallel for all vehicles.

3.3.1 The rules of the CA model.

Update for vehicle i with j = i + 1:

- 1. Accelerate: $v_i := \min(v_i + 1, v_{max})$
- 2. Decelerate: $v_i := d(i, i+1)$; if $v_i < d(i; i+1)$
- 3. Randomize: $v_i := \max(v_i 1, 0)$ with probability p < 1
- 4. **Move:** vehicle i moves v_i cells forward,

In the basic step, all drivers try to accelerate in order to get the maximum permitted velocity v_{max} . Now, we suppose idealized drivers and vehicles in that all want to, and can, get the allowed maximum velocity. In the next step, the lack of collisions comes to bear. The vehicle must be decelerated

in the case that the previous car is too close and thus driving at vi is not permitted. Finally, in the third step all vehicles move. It is noteworthy that vehicles only need to know their own velocity and not that of the other vehicles. In certainty, one typically tries to come up with an uneven estimate of the velocity of the other traffic participants in order to modify one's own behaviour.

3.4 Component of the system.

In order to determine the flow f , one measures the number of vehicles N that pass a prescribed measuring station during a certain time interval δT , e.g., with the support of an induction loop in the road or a radar at a bridge. One then determines the measured value as

$$f = \frac{N}{\delta T} \tag{3.3}$$

Measuring the density ρ is, however, slightly more involved: The number of vehicles N_i on a section of the road having length L must be determined at the point in time i of the measurement. We then computes the number of traffic participants in the measuring region. Since the flow has also been averaged over a time interval δT , one can also average the density over m measurements in the time interval δT and obtains

$$\rho = \frac{1}{M} \sum_{i=1}^{m} \frac{N_i}{L} \tag{3.4}$$

We can continue exactly the same way for the model, we choose a checkpoint on the circular road and a time interval, e.g, $\delta T = 3min = 180$ simulation steps. For each step we consider the $k \ge v_{max}$ cells behind the checkpoint so that we don't lose a vehicle. We then count for each measurement the vehicles in the roadway section of length L = k.7.5m. In order to obtain measured values covering the entire density spectrum between $\rho = 0$ and $\rho = \rho_{max}$, we must systematically populate our circular road with vehicles. We start with an empty road and insert a new vehicle at an ordered intervals until the road is occupied. If we always insert the vehicles at x = 0, we immediately obtain traffic jams at low densities which are always caused at this location by a new car. In order to interrupt the traffic flow as little as likely through this supplement technique, we can insert the new traffic participant at the speed v_{max} and in the middle of the largest free interval. For only a single lane, at most one vehicle can pass the sensor per time step. Thus we would have a maximum flow



Figure 3.3: Measurement of flow and density in the simulation

 $f_{max} = 1veh/s = 3600veh/h$. We will never reach it. Let us assume that all traffic participants have the same velocity, v. To allow as many as likely to pass the sensor in the determining time span, they must drive as closely as possible to one another, i.e., with v free cells in-between. This means that every $(v+1)^{st}$ time step no vehicle passes the sensor, so we observe the flow of $f_{max} = \frac{v}{v+1}veh/s$. This is maximal at $v = v_{max}$, p = 0 and the critical traffic density of $\rho = 22.2$ Vel/km and is reached in our model scenario at

$$f_{max} = 5/6veh/s = 3000veh/h \tag{3.5}$$

The elementary progression shows in each case that there is a large increase for small densities, a sharp bend and a decrease with noise until the highest density is gotten. In contrast to the simulation, tangible measurement values at very extreme densities are usually a rare commodity. These conditions ascend in reality only for a whole traffic jam and are avoided by all involved parties by all means and are therefore not that frequent. Subsequently, our virtual car drivers are significantly less prone to suffering, we can measure values even for extremely great densities in the simulation.

3.5 Build Model

To analyse and optimize the transportation system, we must first model the transportation system mathematically. This model should be based on input parameters (road network geometry, vehicles per minute, speed, etc). Truly represent traffic flow. Traffic flow system models are mostly distributed into three categories, it varies on the level at which they run:

- 1. **Miniature models**: Characterise each vehicle distinctly, and try to replicate the driver's behaviour.
- 2. Macro model: From traffic density (vehicles per kilometer) and traffic movement (vehicle per minute) angle explains the overall movement of the vehicle. They are generally similar to the movement of a fluid.
- 3. Meso model: It is a mixed model merging the features of micro and macro models, the flow is demonstrated as the flow of the vehicle.

3.6 Intelligent Driver Model (IDM)

Years ago, Treiber, Hennecke and Helbing developed a model called intelligent driver model (IDM), it describes the second vehicle i, the acceleration of a vehicle as a function of its variable and the vehicle in front. The dynamic equation is defined as:

$$\frac{dv_i}{dt} = a_i \left[1 - \left(\frac{v_i}{v_{0,i}}\right)^{\delta} - \left(\frac{S^*(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{S_i}\right)^2 \right]$$
(3.6)

where $S^*(v_i, \Delta v_i)$ in equation (3.6) is given by

$$S^{*}(v_{i}, \Delta v_{i}) = S_{0,i} + v_{i}T_{i} + \frac{(v_{i}, \Delta v_{i})}{\sqrt{2a_{i}b_{i}}}$$
(3.7)

We have talked about S_i , v_i , and Δv_i as other parameters are clearly defined in the abbreviation list.

First, We are going to look at S^* , This consists of three parts.



$$s^*(\boldsymbol{v}_i, \Delta \boldsymbol{v}_i) = s_{0,i} + \boldsymbol{v}_i T_i + \frac{\boldsymbol{v}_i \Delta \boldsymbol{v}_i}{\sqrt{2a_i b_i}}$$

Figure 3.4: Desired distance between vehicles

 $S_{0,i}$ is the minimum distance required and $v_i T_i$ is the safe distance of reaction time (brake). Since speed is the distance maintained over time, distance is speed times time, it can be deduced as.

$$v = \frac{d}{T} \to d = vT \tag{3.8}$$

also, $\frac{(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{\sqrt{2a_i b_i}}$ means that the vehicle is braking without emergency (the deceleration shall be less than b_i), The distance required without hitting the vehicle in front.

How the intelligent driver model works?. The vehicle is assumed to travel along a straight road, and assume that the following equation:

$$\frac{dv_i}{dt} = a_{free\ road} + a_{interaction} \tag{3.9}$$

where

$$a_{free \ road} = a_i \left(1 - \left(\frac{v_i}{v_{0,1}}\right)^{\delta} \right) \tag{3.10}$$

and

$$a_{interaction} = -a_i \left(1 - \left(\frac{S^*(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{S_i} \right)^2 \right)$$
(3.11)

To better understand this equation, we can divide it in two. We have a free road acceleration and an interactive acceleration.

$$a_{free \ road} = a_i \left(1 - \left(\frac{v_i}{v_{0,1}}\right)^{\delta} \right) \tag{3.12}$$

The free road acceleration is the acceleration on the free road, that is, an empty road without vehicles. If we plot acceleration as a_i over the velocity v_i we have:



Figure 3.5: Free road acceleration

We noticed that, when the vehicle is stationary $(v_i = 0)$, acceleration is at the greatest. When the vehicle approaches the maximum speed, acceleration becomes 0. This shows that, the free road acceleration will accelerate the vehicle to the maximum speed.

If we plot different values δ for the v - a chart we have,



Figure 3.6: At different acceleration

We observed that δ controls the speed at which the driver decelerates near

the maximum speed. This in turn controls the acceleration or smoothness of deceleration

$$a_{interaction} = -a_i \left(\left(\frac{S^*(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{S_i} \right)^2 \right) = -a_i \left(\frac{S_{0,i} + v_i T_i}{S_i} + \left(\frac{(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{2S_i \sqrt{a_i b_i}} \right)^2 \right)$$
(3.13)

The interaction acceleration is associated to the interaction with the vehicle upfront. To comprehend how the whole thing, let us consider the following

1. On the road to freedom $(S_i >> S^*)$ when the vehicle ahead is far away, namely S_i far greater than the required safe distance between vehicles S^* , the interaction acceleration is almost 0. This means that the vehicle is reduced to a free road acceleration.

$$\frac{dv_i}{dt} \approx a_{free\ road} = a_i \left(1 - \left(\frac{v_i}{v_{0,1}}\right)^{\delta} \right); \left(\frac{S^*(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{S_i}\right)^2 \approx 0 \quad (3.14)$$

2. At high approach rates Δv_i , when the speed difference is large, the interaction acceleration attempts to pass through the $(v_i, \Delta v_i)^2$ item for brake compensation.

$$a_{interaction} = -a_i \left(\frac{S_{0,i} + v_i T_i}{S_i} + \left(\frac{(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{2S_i \sqrt{a_i b_i}} \right)^2 \right) \approx -\frac{(v_i \Delta v_i)^2}{4b_i S_i^2}$$
(3.15)

3. At small distances $(S_i \ll 1 \text{ and } \Delta v_i \approx 0)$ acceleration becomes a simple repulsive force.

$$a_{interaction} = -a_i \left(\frac{S_{0,i} + v_i T_i}{S_i} + \left(\frac{(v_i, \Delta v_i)}{2S_i \sqrt{a_i b_i}} \right)^2 \right) \approx -a_i \left(\frac{(S_{0,i} + v_i T_i)}{S_i} \right)^2$$
(3.16)

So all these described the relationship between one vehicle following the other.

3.7 The Lane-Changing Model

Lane changes take place if another lane is more attractive ('incentive criterion'), and the change can be performed safely ('safety criterion'). In our lane-changing model MOBIL we base both criteria on the accelerations in the old and the prospective new lanes, as calculated with the longitudinal model (that is the IDM in the simulation). The safety criterion is satisfied if the IDM braking deceleration $-a^{IDM}$ imposed on the new follower f' of the target lane after a possible change does not exceed a certain limit b_{safe} ,

3.8 Mathematical Structure of the IDM

The mathematical form of the IDM model equations (1) and (2) is that of coupled ordinary (non-linear) differential equations:

- 1. They are differential equations since, in one equation, the dynamic quantities v(t) (speed) and its derivative dv/dt (acceleration) appear simultaneously.
- 2. They are coupled since, besides the speed v, the equations also contain the speed $v_{lead} = v - \Delta v$ of the leading vehicle. Furthermore, the gap s obeys its own kinematic equation, $ds/dt = -\Delta v$ coupling, again, the (time derivative) gap to the leading speed.

Simulation means to numerically integrate, or to solve the coupled differential equations of the model. Specifically, we consider a finite and fixed numerical update time interval Δt , and integrate over this interval assuming constant accelerations. This so-called ballistic method reads new speed: $v(t + \delta t) = v(t) + dv/dt\Delta t$;

new position: $x(t + \Delta t) = x(t) + v(t)\Delta t + 1/2dv/dt\Delta t^2$

where dv/dt is the IDM acceleration calculated at time t, and x is the position of the front bumper. Strictly speaking, the model is only well defined if there is a leading vehicle and no other object impeding the driving. Nevertheless, generalizations are straightforward:

- If there is no leading vehicle and no other blocking object ('free road'), just set the gap to a very big value such as 1000 m. The bound of the gap tending to infinity is well-defined for any significant car-following model such as the IDM.
- If the next obstructing object is not a leading vehicle but a red traffic light or a stop-signalized intersection, just model these objects by a standing virtual vehicle of length zero positioned at the stopping line.

Chapter 4 Results and Analysis

We consider the analysis of road traffic based on cellula automata (CA) for both one lane and double lane. We also simulate the intelligent driver model (IDM) and compare these models to other known models.

4.1 One Lane Simulation

Road traffic simulation using cellula automata, what is of interest is that this simple model can actually be simulated. We simulate a one lane unidirectional highway section. For this model, as usual we need the initial as well as the boundary conditions for the simulation. On the boundary the question arises which addresses when new vehicles enter the roadway as well as what occurs to vehicles that drive outside the last cell at the end. For some simulations it is beneficial to recommend the flow at the start and to let vehicles disappear when they leave the simulation domain. In the following, we use the simplest options and choose periodic boundary conditions: All vehicle that leaves the roadway at the end returns at the beginning. In particular, this allows one to simulate a constant number of vehicles over an extended period. For a single time step we visualize the simulation as in the figure below.

4.1.1 Description of the single lane traffic

We visualize the state of this model over time and to show how traffic jams can appear when traffic density is high enough. We put into consideration so many traffic terminologies for the simulation, for this single lane simulation we define

- 1. Maximum velocity = 5.
- 2. Road length = 100,
- 3. Density = 0.2,
- 4. Slow probability = 0.3

For single time step we have. This demonstrates the velocity at which a

Figure 4.1: One time step for single lane.

car moves into the lane, with each number representing the velocity of the moving car from left to right. The acceleration just drags on a little longer. The vehicle will reach v_{max} eventually despite dallying. For example,

$$0 \to 1 \to 2 \to 3 \to 4 \to 5$$

can become

 $0 \rightarrow 1 \rightarrow 1 \rightarrow 2 \rightarrow 2 \rightarrow 2 \rightarrow 3 \rightarrow 4 \rightarrow 4 \rightarrow 5.$

So if we have $0 \rightarrow 0 \rightarrow 0 \rightarrow 0 \rightarrow 0$, this means cars with 0 velocities, and this is when traffic jam occur. So, we plot the graph of flow rate to the density for one lane traffic with one time step. To have more visualization we increase the time steps to 25 for a single lane, we have The randomization step incorporates into the model three fundamental phenomena of road traffic:

- 1. Delay when accelerating: A vehicle that does not drive with highest velocity v_{max} and has an open road, i.e., one that would supposedly accelerate, does not do so as soon as possible but barely with some time delay to a later step. One notes that the velocity is not condensed in the acceleration phase.
- 2. Dallying on an open road: Drivers who drives v_{max} for a longer period of time on an open road tend to not preserve their velocity constant. Again, the model neglects that a vehicle suddenly decelerates entirely in various steps.



Figure 4.2: Average flow rate of one time step for single lane.

| .13.05020.13.13141420.05.00510.00053 |
|---|
| 1.1010.13021.1323232.0.1.10.0.120.100.12 |
| .12.11120.12.12122221.1.1.120120.100.121. |
| |
| .212.1220.13232343.1.0233.122.10.1023 |
| 32202300122233. |
| .1200220.122 |
| 32.000300123334320.1.1112300.10.12 |
| .1.0.00000.11333 |
| .0.0.00.10.12233432.1.1.1232.11.1.100013 |
| 40100212224422.10.0234121.100001 |
| 0000032223513.10.1.134.123.10000.12 |
| 0.1.00.1 |
| 0100231245111112023200000123 |
| .1.00.132.135522.01.1.1213300000.1220 |
| 1.10.1.24024522.101.1.132300000.1.132 |
| .10.123403512.10.110133000000.0123. |
| 20.12300452.0.0.12.0.1222.00000.1023. |
| 0.123330.1 |
| .1.13332.12 |
| 1.1223202301.12.1.122350000.100.122. |
| .1.13320.133 |
| 202330.1223 |
| 0034002324010033440000.00.12334. |
| 0040003341.00.13340000.10.123341 |

Figure 4.3: 25 time steps for single lane.

3. Overreaction when decelerating: A vehicle is stalled by a slower vehicle in front and must modify its velocity appropriately. For example, drivers tend to the brakes too hard since they misinterpret the distance or speed or because they drive too cautiously with respect to what is deemed an optimal traffic behavior. The condition considering an underreaction that leads to rear end collisions is excluded in the model.

So, we plot the graph of flow rate to the density for one lane traffic with 25 time steps.



Figure 4.4: Average flow rate for 25 time step. For the one-lane model, the maximum flow rate is: 0.425 and it's reached at the density of: 0.04

4.2 Two-Lane Simulation

For two lane the randomization step is very useful sufficient for the model to demonstrate realistic traffic behaviour. We can detect that traffic jams form which disappear again after a short time. Especially the fact that the model can explain so-called traffic jams out of nowhere, traffic jams that appear spontaneously and, from an outsider perspective, without any reason. With other models these are usually not easy to observe without additional effort and must be modelled explicitly.

4.2.1 Description of the double lane traffic

For the simulation of two lanes simulation, we define the following traffic terms that we use to set up our model.

- 1. Road length = 100,
- 2. Density = 0.2,
- 3. Maximum velocity = 5,
- 4. slow probability = 0.3,
- 5. Lane probability = 0.8.

We set up two empty road with the vehicle moving randomly into the two lanes. We populate cars on the lanes according to initial probabilities and that with symmetric model, a car only changes lanes when there is someone in front of it and that the other lane is free. For one time step with the two lanes simulation we have.



So, we plot the graph of flow rate to the density for two lane traffic with one time step.

We also increase the time steps to 25 to have a better visualisation of the simulation, and we have in the graph.



Figure 4.6: Average flow rate one time step for two lanes.

| 4.0 | | 2 | | |
|----------|---------|-----|--------|----|
| 44132 | 11 | .4 | | |
| 1 | 4 | | | |
| 53233. | 11 | | 1.11 | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| 1000 | 4 | | | |
| .3 | .422 | | 40 | |
| 100 | 50.001. | | | |
| | | 4 | | 4 |
| .201.0.1 | | 2 | | .4 |
| 0 | .2334 | 5 | .3.122 | |
| .0.11.12 | | | | 4 |
| 1 | | | | |
| 101123 | | | | 54 |
| 11 | | .5 | | |
| 002233 | | | | 42 |
| 2 2 | | | .3.02 | 4 |
| 0.13333. | | .34 | 54 | 4 |
| 2 | | .4 | 410 | |
| .12233 | | | | |
| | | 4 | 1.0.1 | |
| 1.12 | .4512. | | 5 5 | |
| | | 552 | 2.1.12 | 5 |
| 02333. | 552 | .3 | 4 | |
| | 5 | |)123 | 4 |
| 0343 | | 34 | .55 | 5 |
| | 5 | | 1224 | |
| .1 | .4523 | | | |
| .354 | | | | |
| | | | | |

Figure 4.7: 15 time-step for two lanes

We can realise that the rate at which we have traffic jams has reduced due to ability to change lane. So, we plot the graph of flow rate to the density for two lane traffic with 15 time steps.



Figure 4.8: Average flow rate for 15 time steps for two lanes. For the twolane model, the max flow rate is: 0.440000000000001 and it's reached at the density of: 0.06

4.3 Simulation with the Intelligent driver model (IDM)

In the following, we describe the simulation scenarios, the main user interactions and observable traffic phenomena. At first we reformulated the IDM equation in [3.6] for $v' = x''_{n+1}$ and $v = x'_{n+1}$ so we have; and we solve equation [4.1]

$$x_{n+1}''(t)dt = a_i \left[1 - \left(\frac{x_{n+1}'(t)}{x_0}\right)^{\delta} - \left(\frac{S^*(x_{n+1}'(t), \Delta x_{n+1}'(t))}{S_{n+1}(t)}\right)^2 \right]$$
(4.1)

where $S^*(x'_{n+i}(t), \Delta x'_{n+i}(t))$ in equation (4.1) is given by

$$S^*(x'_{n+1}(t), \Delta x'_{n+1}(t)) = S_0 + max \left[0, \left(x'_{n+1}(t)T + \frac{(x'_{n+1}(t).\Delta x'_{n+1})(t)}{\sqrt{2ab}} \right) \right]$$
(4.2)

we solve this equations with using ode45 solver with Dirichlet boundary condition and using the following parameters.

- $x'_{n+1}, x''_{n+1}(t)$ is the velocity and the acceleration of the following car n+1
- $S^*(x'_{n+1}(t), \Delta x'_{n+1}(t))$ is the desired gap between two cars
- $\Delta x'_{n+1}(t)$ is the velocity difference between the leading and the following car
- x'_0 is the free velocity [x'_0 30m/sec for a car]
- T is the nominal time between two cars [T=1.5sec]
- a is the acceleration $[a = 0.3m/sec^2]$
- b is the comfortable breaking deceleration in normal traffic scenario $[b=3m/sec^2]$
- s_0 is the minimum distance between two cars $[s_0 = 2m]$
- $s_n = x_{n-1} x_n l_c$ where l_c is the length of the leading car $[l_c = 5m]$
- δ is the constant as acceleration exponent $[\delta = 4]$



Figure 4.9: velocity-time graph of the road

We plot the graph of the velocity vs time for both the IDM and the real velocity of the road. We see observe that the car by the IDM and the car by the real velocity move freely on the road without collision as they started with a distance of 2m in between them.

4.3.1 Roundabout (close road)

We also perform the same simulation using IDM with python, JavaScript and pygame. and for this we try to simulate both vehicle and truck for better visualization. This simulation scenario shows multi-lane vehicular traffic in a closed system (ring road). For the close road as we randomly put cars into the road it got to a point that we can no longer put the car again because the closed system never give room to cars out of road.



Figure 4.10: Simulation screenshot of a closed roundabout.

From the simulation, you can also lessen the number of lanes to 1 ('freeway minus' symbol) and/or eliminate the trucks (truck percentage to zero) to realize that neither lane changes nor driver-vehicle heterogeneity are relevant factors for this mechanism.

4.3.2 Open System Scenarios with different Bottlenecks

We also perform the same simulation for different bottlenecks. The simulator provides three scenarios with open boundaries and several forms of bottlenecks (in the screenshots below).



Figure 4.11: Simulation screenshot

CHAPTER 4. RESULTS AND ANALYSIS



Figure 4.12: Simulation screenshot with open roundabout



Figure 4.13: Simulation screenshot with intersection:

Notice that, all the above screenshots are the screenshots of the open-system scenarios with different bottlenecks. They all shows how a vehicles flow into the lane with and how they react to any barrier. The flow-conserving bottlenecks differ in their strength. We notice that when a vehicle noticed a barrier in its current lane, it will automatically change to another lane and the all the vehicles will change lane neglecting the lane where the barrier was placed. You can slow down the simulation speed, set your desired speed and click at an entering vehicle to observe how it encounters the traffic waves.

4.4 Comparing our simulation with other traffic simulations

Cellular automata (CA) with IDM models are widely used traffic simulation models because of their simplicity compare to other simulation [1]. Due to their fast performance when used in computer simulation, CA with IDM models are considered more advantageous over other models [2]. The knowledge of CA was commenced by Johann Louis von Neumann in 1948, when he used them to study living biological systems [3]. The CA were more commercialised in the nineteen eighties by the works of Stephen Wolfram [4]; The related CA models to all disciplines of sciences. Mostly, there are three kinds of CA models: stochastic models, deterministic model, and slow to start models. In 1992, Nagel and Schreckenberg proposed a CA model that can reproduce the most characteristics of traffic movement [5].

Conclusion

We have been able to simulate road traffic microscopically with the help of cellula automata for a single lane and two lanes, we discover that for single, as cars are moving randomly into the lane from left to right with their respective velocities, there experiences a traffic jam and this is due to different behaviour of the drivers. But in the case of two lanes traffic, the issue of traffic jam is reduced, this is as a result of the fact that drivers can change lane once there is free space in the second lane, the cellula automata helps us to assume that all cars are same with the assumption that the maximum velocity the car can attain is 5m/s. In the IDM simulation, we successfully recreate the ideal intelligent of the driver. The IDM mainly simulate the distance between the leading and the following vehicles. We discover that the IDM is very accurate in maintaining the normal distance between the leading and the following vehicle. We also realize the automatic change of lane when a vehicle experiences any obstacle or barrier in the current lane of when its experience any traffic delay in the current lane.

References

- 1. K. Nagel and M. Schreckenberg. A cellular automaton model for freeway traffic. Journal de Physique I, 2:2221–2229, December 1992.
- Rolf H. Möhring. Scheduling under uncertainty: Bounding the makespan distribution. In Helmut Alt, editor, Computational Discrete Mathematics: Advanced Lectures, volume 2122 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 79–97. Springer, 2001
- Edward Ott. Chaos in Dynamical Systems. Cambridge University Press, 1993.
- 4. Alan Taylor and Allison M. Pacelli. Mathematics and Politics: Strategy, Voting, Power, and Proof. Springer, 2. edition, 2008.
- 5. Henk C. Tijms. A First Course in Stochastic Models. Wiley, 2 edition, 2003.
- M. Treiber and A. Kesting. Traffific Flow Dynamics. Springer Berlin Heidelberg, 2013.
- 7. George J. Klir and Bo Yuan. Fuzzy sets and fuzzy logic: theory and applications. Addison Wesley, 1995.
- Reinhart D. Kühne and Malte B. Rödiger. Macroscopic simulation model for freeway traffic with jams and stop-start waves. In WSC '91: Proceedings of the 23rd conference on Winter simulation, pages 762–770, Washington, DC, USA, 1991. IEEE Computer Society.
- 9. Los Alamos National Laboratory. TRANSIMS Transportation Analysis Simulation System. http://transims.tsasa.lanl.gov.
- W. Knospe, L. Santen, A. Schadschneider, and M. Schreckenberg, J. Phys. A33, L477 (2000).

- 11. Bham, G H and Benekohal, R F Highways; Operations and Traffic Management; I71: Traffic Theory.
- R.F. Benekohal. and Aycin, development and validation of a Car Following Model for Simulation of Traffic Flow and Traffic Wave Studies at Bottlenecks. Ph.D. Dissertation. The Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio, 1986.
- J. Treiterer. Investigation of Traffic Dynamks by Aerial Photo- grammetry Techniques. Transportation Research Center, Department of Civil Engineering, Ohio State University, Final Report EES 278, Feb. 1975
- E. Brockfeld and P. Wagner, in Interface and Transport Dynamics Computational Modelling, edited by H. Emmerich, B. Nestler, M. Schreckenberg (Springer 2003)
- Ranjitkar, P., Nakatsuji, T., Azuta, Y., and Gurusinghe, G. S. Stability Analysis Based on Instantaneous Driving Behavior Using Car-Following Data. In Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation Research Board, No. 1852, TRB, National Research Council, Washington, D.C., 2003, pp. 140–151.
- S.Kikuchi, P. Chakroborty Car-following model based on fuzzy inference system Transportation Research Record, 1365 (1992), pp. 82-91
- 17. Wu, G., Wu, Y., Jiao, L., Wang, Y.F., and Chang, E. (2003). Multicamera spatiotemporal fusion and biased sequence-data learning for security surveillance. Technical Report, ECE Department, University of California at Santa Barbara.
- Panwai, S. and Dia, H. (2005) Comparative Evaluation of Microscopic Car-Following Behaviour. IEEE Transactions on Intelligent Transportation Systems, Vol. 6, No. 3, pp. 314-325.
- M. Treiber, A. Hennecke, and D. Helbing, Physical Review E 62, 1805 (2000)
- 20. A. Kesting, M. Treiber, and D. Helbing, Transportation Research Record 1999, 86(2007).
- 21. https://traffic-simulation.de/intersection.html